United Nations Nations Unies

ECONOMIC CONSEIL CNFESTRICEED h
AND ECONOMIQUE 3/ 5l

SOCIAL COUNCIL ET SOCIAL

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

INTERNATIONAL CHILDREN'S EMERGENCY FUND

Executive Board

SUMMARY RECCORD OF THE TWENTY-FOURTH MEETING

Lake Success, Ncw York
Friday, 12 March 1948 at 10.30 p.m.

Present:
Chairman: Dr. RAJCHMAN (Poland)

Australia Mr. TANGE
Brazil Mr. CAMPOS
Canada Mres. SINCLAIR
China Mr. HSIAO
Colombia Mr. ORTIZ-RODRIGUEZ
Denmark Dr. HOIM
Ecuador Miss TOUS
Francc Dr. BUGNARD
Greece Mr. KYROU

Iraq Mr. KHALIDY
Netherlandc Miss WITTEVEEN
Norway Mr. NORD

Peru ' Mr. BENAVIDES
Sweden Mr. WOLLIN
Ukrainian Soviet Socialist

Republic Mr. POROZNIAKOV
Union of Soviet Socialist

Republics Mr..KAMENEV
Union of South Africa Mr. WOOLWARD
United Kingdom Mr. ALEXANDER
United States of America  Mics LENROOT
Yugoslavia Mr. VILFRAN
Switzerland Mr. KESSLER
Executive Director, ICEF Mr. PATE

ICEF Headquarters Mr. SABIN

Mr. CHERNOW
NOTE: Corrections of this summary record provided for in the rules

of procedure should be submitted in writing within the prescribed period to
Mr. Delavanay, Director, Editorial Divisions, Room CC-119, Lake Success.

the§ap€£ﬂ?r%%ﬂ§ symhol number.

UNT

AL

L2 |

|

gﬁgrections should be accompanied by or incorporated in a letter -written
heruded notepaper |and enclosed in an envelope marked "Urgent"

and bearing



E/ICEF/SR 24
Page 2

REPORT OF THE PROGRAMME COMMITTEE (document E/ICEF/51).

The CHAIRMAN announced that the Board would continue its examination
of the Report of the Programme Committee, the first ten pages of which had

been dealt with at previous meetings.

The first three sub-paragraphs of paragraph 27 were approved subject
t0 certain drafting changes.

Miss LENROOT (United States of America) withdrew the amendment to
the final paragraph of paragraph 27 which she had proposed at a previous

meeting.

Mr. HSIAO (China) opposed the allocation of a $1,000,000 reserve
for "the treatment of children and mothers in countries which will under-
take an overall campeign for the eradication of syphilis". If the recommenda-
tion were adopted in spite of his opposition he suggested that the word

"overall" be omitted.

Mrs. SINCLAIR (Canada) also opposed the allocation of monies from
future resources at that time. The Canadian delegation had, it was true,
been in favour of the proposal for the B.C.G. programme, but the present
recommendation was in a different category, and the Board had frequently
been told that its resources were very limited. Medical advice was that
any campalgn against syphilis must be overall to be effective, but as only
" one country had had the foresight to put such a programme into operation,
the sum suggested would not be required to meet requests at the outset.

The Board should confine itself to programmes which could be operated in

a substantial number of countries, and should be slow to commit itself to
further expenditure in view of the limited and doubtful nature of future
resources. The Canadian delegation questioned the feasibllity of the Board's
action of the previous day in voting away monies of which it had not in

fact possessed.

/Miss LENROOT



E/ICEF/SR .2k
Page 3
Mies LENROOT (United States of America) drevw attention to document
E/590 which on page 13, stated
"becau-e of recent developments in medical science which make
possible the preventioﬁ of tuberculosis in children and the complete
eradication of venereal diseases in childyen gndpregnant motheré,<
priority is to be given in providing medical supplies and eervieeél
to governmeénts which wish to develop projects in these flelds."
In the light of thet policy a letter had already been circulated toﬁ
‘Governments asking whether they desired to submit projects in the field of
" venereal disease. For .that reason she would not wish the'report to omit &11
mention of the:subject,'although'ehe-agreed that it was difficult to allocate
specific sums from future resources, since -the Board did not knmow to what
extent -they would be required. She proposed that the finmal sub-paragraph of
paragraph 27 should be amended to«read:.
- "It is recommended that Governments desiring to do so be
encouraged to submit proJects for the eradication of syphilis
in children and expectant and nureing mothers for consideration
of the programme Committee and the Executive Board when making

allocations out of future resources."

Dr. BUGNARD (France) considered that the ellocation of one million
dollers recommended by the Programme  Committee should not be regarded as
excessive: It would be difficult to allocate less, and in view of the figures
received from the one country which had already established a programme for
the eradication of syphilis he considered that the matter was so important-as
to constituta an emergency He could see no advantage in adopting the amended
text proposed by the United States but preferred fhavoriginel wording sub-

mitted by the Programme Committee.

Mrs. SINCIAIR



E /ICEF /SR . 2k
Page 4 T R GO =
Mrs. SINCLAIR (Canada), in reply to a question by Mr. Kyrou (Greece)

stated that she would be prepared to accept the United States amendment.

Mr. TANGE (Australia) opposed the United States amendméﬁf;' Tie

Progremme Committee's recommendation wes that a reserve fund should be
established for the treatment of children end mothers in countries prepared

to undertake en overgll campaign for the eradication of syphilis by means

of a particular technique. The choice, as explained by technical experts,

lay betveen the public health technique of the blenket application of remedial
measures to a particular country, and the method of prociding limited relief..
which would be extremely limited in view of the Fund's resources -- for
-particular cases. He strongly questioned whether the Board should édObt the
latter technique. Furthermore, the Fund should not be committed, even by -
implication, before the Board had received some indication of the type of
project which countries would suggest. The text proposed by the reﬁfesentativ:
of the United States gave no indication of the kind of programmes which would

be acceptable to the Fund.

Miss LENROOT (United States of America) felt that in principle she

.and the representative of Australia were largely in agreement. ‘She had
included the word "eradication" in her amendment, and no system of individual
. treatment could be. regarded as a programme for the eradication of syphiiis.
She "had not used “the phraseé "countries which would undertake an overall'
campaign" because 1t would be impossible to cover the whole of a country as

large, for instance; as China.

Mr. HSAIO (China)lbbjected to fhe gmphas;s placed by the(rgpresenxa-
tive of Australia on the word "overall”. If, however, the term were used
in the sense of a large scale campaign for the eradication of syphilis in
a certain limited area of a country, that would be acceptable to him; but

if it were taken to imply a nation-wide campaign he would oppose it very

strongly.
[He suggested



E/ICEF /SR.24
Page 5
He suggested that fhe best means of encouraging campalgns would be to
val}océfé a sum.df $300, 000 immediately. The United States representative had
told the Board fhat a cirqular letter .had been sent to Gavernments, and the
Board would be placed in a delicate position iIf 1t did not provide a fund which
.could bé uséd in countrie§ other than Poland. He did not agree with the United

States representative that document E/590 gave authority for the circular
letter, but felt that the Chlef of the Buropean Office had exceeded his duty

in that respect. Several members of the Programme Committee had expressed the

same view, but the action was now a fait accompli and the Board could not

retract. On the whole it would be better to adopt the text suggested by the

United States.

Mr. POROZNIAKOV (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Refublic) found that
the United States amendment tended to substitute the abstract for the partially
concrete, whefeas the original péragraph,'although not entirely satisfacto;y,
wves at least based on concrete figures and requests and suggested meéns for

dealing with the situation.

Mr. CAMPOS (Brazil) regarded the proposal of the Chinese rcpresenta-
tive as unrealistic. One million dollars was a minimum, even for Poland

alone, and the Board could not reduce the amount.

Mr. PATE (Executive Director of ICEF) pointed out that the applica-
tion which had been received in connection with the share of children and
mothers in. the Polish programme had been withdrawn until the Board could

ascertain what projects would be submitted by other Governments.

"The CHAIRMAN agreed with the United States repreéentative that
"overall" should be 1nterpre£ed as meaning that a programme should be on &
sufficlently large scale to ensure thevattainment of the obJect in view. It
could not,_howeyer, be teken to apply to the whole of a country as large as ~

/China,



E/ICEF/SR.24

Page 6

China, where the programme must be confined to areas which, from the technical
point of view, tould be congidered: large. enough fgr the purrose it was sought
to achieve. Furthermore, any cempaign had to be sufficiently,extens;vqﬂto
ensure that thosé who had been treated stood;novrisk ofvrefinfeotion; It

was Impossible to define the size of such an area in .a résolution because it
. would dependron a technical survey and on the wviews of the public health;

authorities in the country concerned.

Mr. TANGE (Australia) félﬁ that_the United States amendment buf the
Board's intentions in a false light. The mention of the limited.SQm of'one
~million dollers in the original text made it clear that the assistance»yhibh
might be expected wogld be very restricted. The failure to mention such»a

specific amount might lead Governments to expect more help than the Fund

would probabiy be able to afford.

Mr.ALEXANDER (United Kingdom) suggested to the Australian repreéenta-
tive that if the»ICEF could establish‘the existence of a really urgentkﬁeed
the necessary money might conceivably be forthcoming. The inquiries would be
extremely valuable, provided Governments were not led to expect immediate or
substantial éésisfance. In keeping with his desire to see &ll countries
tfeated alike in all matters, he suggested that the amendment might be reword-
ed to read :

"It is recommended that the Governments of countries eligible

under the Resolution of the General Assembly No. 57 (1) should be
asked whether they wish to submit projects for the eradication of
syphilis in‘children and expectant and nursing mothers for th; con-
sideration of the Programme Committee and the Executive Board when

making allocations out of future resources."

.The CEATRMAN wished to meke 1t clear that, although Poland's pro-
gramme entailed an extensive mobilization of medical ﬁgrsonnel and a vast

/expenditure,



E/ICEF/SR.24

Page 7
expeniditure, including the purchase abrqﬁu of penicillin costing 1,600,000
dollars -- which created considerable foreign exchange difficulties -- it was

not dependent upon assistance from the Fund. As he had informed the Pro-
gramme Committee, and as had been intimated to WHO, the Polish Government wouls

welcome technical interest and would be pleased to make available its exper-
ience in the matter. When the Executive Board was in a position to consider
the matter from a practical standpoint Poland would be ready to co-operate.

The text proposed by the United Kingdom representative was adopted
by twelve votes to eight.

The CHAIRMAN announced that the Board had completed its examination
of the Programme Committee's recommendations paragraph by paragraph and would

praoceed to consider them as a whole.

Miss LENROOT (United stafes of America) proposed tﬁat the recommenda-
tion on page ten of the Report concerniné the anti-tuberculﬁf project, which
had been.adopted at a previous meeting, should be reconsidered. Although
the earlier vote had included a large numer of abstentions 1t had, neverthre-
'lesé, resulted in the afproval of a sum two million dollars in excess of,the
oriéinal recommendatioh. In view of the unprogrémmed baiance, which 1ncluded
flexible reserves, there was some argument in favour of exceeding the original
amount by one million dollars, but 1£ was hazardous tolincrease it by as much
as two million. Technical authorities had 1nformed.her that considerable time
would be required for the development of progreammes outside Europe which would
call for the immediate expenditure of two miilion dollars, and she suggested
that the paragraph be amended to read :

"Recommends that the sum of $3,700,000 be allocated for a .

~ Bacillus-Calnette-Guerin anti-tubercular project, in addition to
$300,000 to 56 taken out of the $500,000 medical reserve approved by
the Executive Board (E/590 paragraph 23), of which $1,000,000 will be
taken from future resources.”

/Mr. BSAIO (China)



E/ICEF /sR.2h
Page 8

: Mr HSAIO (China) supported the United States proposal, but pointed
‘out that 1t must be understood as a definite allocation. He felt that the
Administration was confusing allocation and payment. -Allocation did not mean
the actuel and immediate disbursement of monies. Governments plarned theizr
‘nudgets months in advance, and included in them allocations which were met
frem revenue received later. He could not accept any suggestion of- difficulty
ffom the Administration based on the argument that the $3,700,9Q0 was not avail

able for immediate use.

Mr. ALEXANDER (United Kingdom) also accepted the R —— proposed
by the United States representative, despite the fact that the eerlier
decision had been reached by a majority vote conducted in accordance withyﬂhe
rules of procedure. He suggested that for the purpose of clarification some
indication should be included of the ménner in which the total of four million
dollars was to be spent -- either at the end of the paragraph under discussion
or in paragreph 21 (2).las the Chairman might decide. The Board weS'anxioue
to maintain the principle of a balence between expenditure inside and-outside
Europe, and he suggeeted that the addition to the text should be amplified
to reed :

" ..of which $1,C00,0Q0 be taken from future resources

for expenditure outside Europe.”"

Mr. CAMPOS (Braz1l) informed the Board that he had abstained from
voting on the originel pfeposal on the éround that a conperative survey of
needy areas must be undertaken in order that e considered patnern of alloca;
tion might be formulated. From earlier discussion he had inferred tnat "out -
slde Europe" comprieed China, the Far East generaily, the Neer‘East and,
possibly, Latin America. If countries were interested and were qnalified by
their neede, the problem arose as to the best means of advising them of the
programme. Two procedures were possible. A circular could be sent to the

/Governments



E/ICEF /SR.2h4

Page 9 ’
Governments concerned stating that the Executive Board had decided that
$2,000,000 might be available for B.C.G. programmes, and inviting them to
submit progremmes or statements of thelr requirements, whichever fhey
" preferred. On the other hand, it might be better for the Eieéutive Director

to proceed with the proposed survey of comparative needs and, on the'baSis of -

that, to indicate to the Governments of countries in which the infant
mortality rate from T.B. reached a certain level what were the possibilities

of assistance.

The CHAIRMAN pointed out that it would contravene resolution 57 (1)
to address. only members of the United Nations in regard to this matter, but
that, on the other hand, a circular lestter sant by-fhe United Nations to all
countries would be open to misunderstanding. The best method of‘avoiding
such a dilemme would be to ask WHO to inform all its members of the B.C.G.

programme .
Mr. CAMPOS (Brazil) expressed warm approval of thig,suggegtipn.

Mr. HSIAO (China) sald that if the words "for expenditure outeide
| Europe", as suggested by the United Kingdom representative, followed immed -
lately after the words "of which $1,000,000 will be taken from future
resources”, the impression would be given that only $1,000,000 was to be

ueed outside FBurope.

Miss LENROOT (United States of America) felt 1t would have been
better to deal with the matter under paragraph 21. However, 1f it was to‘be
dealt with in the paragraph under discussion, the proposal could be clarified
if the proposed amendment read : "$2,000,000 to be immediately available
fér a European programme and $2,000,000 for expenditures outside Europe, of
which $1,000,000 will be taken from future resources."”

/Mr. BUGNARD



E/ICEF /SR:. 2k

Page 10

" Mr: BUGNARD (France) supported the'BrazilianApfbﬁésal for tﬁe send-

ing of a circular letter. The European programme was based upon the necessity
of irmediate help to war victims, and the same criterie would have to be
- applied outside Europe. ‘The resources of the Fund woﬁld hafe to be divided
~equitably between European and non-European countries. In.thaabsence of the
requisite information, howevér, there was dangéf of allocating ridiculously

small sﬁms. A programme for the Far East should be undertaken only with

assurance of sufficient resources.

The CHATRMAN pointed out, firstly, that paragraph 21 of the Report
1mbliéd'that ﬁhe European prdgr&mmeAwould be undertaken immediately, and,
‘secondly, that sub-paragraph (h) of that parégraph stated thét thé Executive
Board would appro#e the first list of countries in which operationé were to be
started and every subsequent proposai as to new countrieé. The purpoee_of the
proposed circular letter was to obtain precise information from couﬁtries
planning tg seek assistance from the Fund, that information to be used in

deciding on the establishment of programmes for such countries.

Mr. CAMPOS,(Brazil) agreed with the Cheirmen's analysis. In meking
its ﬂecisiéns, the Executive Board would have to take into consideration the
priorifies established by.the_General Assembly, but those priorities were not
to be uﬁderstood as establishing an exclusive right to assistance. A compar-

ison of infant morbidity and mortality rates from tuberculosis might reveal
an extremely urgent need in countries which had not been victims of aggression.
Indeed, statistics indicated a higher infant mortality rate in Uruguay, for
example, than in France. Furthermore, European needs had been fﬁlly takén

into account through en outright allocation of $2,000,000.

Mr. TANGE (Australia) felt that the proposed emendment to take the
additional $1,000,000 from future resources was simply an admission that the

/previous



E/ICEF/SR.2k

Page 11
previous decision to increase Bllocations for a B.C.G. programme by
$1,000,000 had no Justification in the.light of the Fund's present resources.
He could not vote for such an a%tempted rationalization of the previoué
deéision, which, he pointed out, had been adbptéd‘wiﬁh less then the member-
ship of the Board voting. Apart from the question of the desirability of
an allocation of that kind, and apart from the question of whether 1t would
be practicable for the countries concerned to make use of the resources of the
:Fund for the particular technical underteking envisaged, he was strongly
opposed to -the tying up of future resources. If the amendment were adopted
the Australian delegation réserved the right at future meetings to raise the
question whether the $l,OQ0,000 reserve was actually being used, or could be
used, for the purpoées specified, and the furtﬁer question whether it should
ﬁofipe divefted; ét least in part, to other progrémmés sﬁch as the feeding

programme .

Mr. ALEXANDER (United Kingdom) stated that, before the adoption of
the previous decision, he had suggested several methods of avoiding the
difficglties involvedvin the ineviteble conflict of interests as between
differént programmes. For instance, he had proposed tﬁat no commitment
ﬁeyond a period of three months be made in regard to the food programme; dbut

his suggestions had been rejected. That was the result of not looking at

the programme as a wﬁole.
He would support the proposal as the lesser of two evils. In three or
four months' time, when the Board met again, it would be possible to revise

the decision if, in the light of further information, it proved to be unsound.

Mr. HSiAOI(China) expressed the opinion that the objection of the
representative of Australia to the additional allocation of $1,000,000 was

based on & misconception of the term "present resources". Examination of '
Appendix h; on page 34 of document E/ICEF/51, would reveal that the assets

/available to



E/ICEF/SR.2k
Page ‘12
available to the Fund totaled $19,600,000 and nof $15,800,000. The financial
statement gave the eroneous impression that the figure of $3,8C0,000 did not
represent a sum available for allocation. While the figure did not represent
cash on hand, nevertheless proper accounting procedure required that it bte
included among assets. With this explanation, he was willing to accept the
modification proposed by the representative of the United States.

As to the projeect itself, it was a mistake to adopt an "1l or nothing"
attitude. The vaccination of 3,000,000 children would not eradicate tubercu-
losis, but neither would the vaccination of 15,000,0C0; it was botter to

vaccinate 3,000,000 than none.

Mr. PATE'(Executivé ?;recﬁor) thought that the appendix on page 3h,
faken together with thq analysis on page 35, proyided a Yerywieartgtatemsnt.
The Fund rece;ved confributions in many different currencies. In)the future,
as suggested by the representative of Australia, the phrase "Equivalent in
United States dollars" would appear at the top of such tables as that on page

34.

Mrs; SINCLAIR (Cansda), as one who had voted against increasing
the ailocaﬁions:by $1,000,000, did not feel that the proposed amendment im-
proved the sifuation sufficieﬁ£ly to warrént the support of her delegatioq.
If the amendme;t were passed, the Canadlan delegation would reserve the same

rights previously reserved by the Australian delegation. %

Mr. POROZNIAKOV (Ukrainiah Soviet ébéialist Republic) stated that
the Board had been'placed‘in an embarrassing poéitidn by accepting the figure

of $3,700,000, since it did not have sufficient resources to implement that

declsion. The large number of abstentions on that vote indicated that at
the time the question had not been very .clear to members of the Board. The
implications of the declision had been revealed, however, by the present

/discussion.



E/ICEF/SR.24
Page 13
discussion. He therefore proposed that the matter should be reconsidered

and that the Board should adopt the original figure of $2,700,000.

Miss LENROOT (United States of America) noted, in connection with
the Chairman's announced decision to put the Ukrainian proposal to & vote
before the Unlted States amendment, that In a sense her amendment also
involved reconsideration of the matter. It would therefore be simplest to

vote first on the question of reconsideration; if that motion were adopted
she would then move an amendment inc¢orporating the figure of $3,700,000 and
her proposed addition.

Mr. CAMPOS (Brazil) questiomed whether the rules of procedure allowed
reconsideration of a previous decision. In reply to the Chairmen's statement
that actually the Board had now been reconsidering the text for some time,
he declared that the purpose of that reconsideration had been merely to obtain
clarification of a text definitely agreed upon; it was quite another matter

to take a new vote on the text.

Mr. ALEXANDER (United Kingdom) stated that agreement to add a phrase
to the adopted text implied no right to reconsider a vote already taken.

Mr. BSTAO (China) agreed with the remarks of the representative of
Brazil. If the Board voted on reconsideration of this particular paragraph,

he would feel entitled to propose reconsideration of any and every item in

the Report.

‘Miss LENROOT (United States of America) in view of the discussion
which had taken place, withdrew her previous suggestion that the United

States amendment might properly be treated as & proposal to reconsider.

Mr. VILFRAN (Yugoslavia) supported the Ukrainian proposal. He
pointed out that a precedent for reconsideration of a question already voted
upon had been set at a meeting of the Fifth Committee of the General Assembly;

/indeed,



E/ICEF /SR.2L

Page 14 .

indeed, that such a precedent had in effect been set at the previous meetdpg
of the Board ifseif,lsidce the reﬁreseetative of Irag had changed his vote

at the very lasﬁ eecond, or perheps even after the Qote had actually been
taken. Furthermore, there was no intention of reconsidering the substance

of the recommendation voted upon; in fact, reconsideration of a small detail,
the implications of which had not previously been clear, was desired precise- -

1y in order to enable the members to remain faithful to the principle under-

lying their earlier vote.

Mr. TANGE (Aﬁstralia), on‘a.péint ef order, held that procedurally
the United Stetes amendment was on exactly the same foofing as a propesal
to change the figure of $3,700;000 to the origihal figure of $2,700,000.
This was so because allocations could be made only out of pfesent reéources
and therefore e proposal to "allocate“‘$1,000,000 out of future resources was

tentamount to an amendment reducing the allocation by that amount.

Dr. BUGNARD (France) endorsed the position of the Australian.
representative and urged reconsideration of the previous decision. His dele-
- gation would support the allocation of funds for any country in the world when
a goncrete project was submitted, but was dnwiiling to coﬁmit sums for;the

future without knowing the exact needs of the countries concerned.

' The CHATIRMAN, ruling on the point of order reised by the represeﬁta-
tive of Australia, held that the United States amendment and the Ukrainian

amendment were on the same footing.

Mr. KYROU (Greece) suggested that the Board first decide on the
principle of submitting the Ukrainian amendment to the vote If that were
decided affirmatively, there would then be another vote on the Substance of

the proposal.

/Mr. VILFRAN



E/ICEF /SR.2h
Page 15
Mr. VILFRAN (Yugoslavia) agreed with the represehtative of
Greece. It would be difficult technically to call the Ukrainian proposal
an amendment; rather, it was a proposal to rescind a former vote and proceed

" to & new one. The gimplest procedure would be to determine whether the

Board wished to rescind the previous vote.

Mr. TANGE (Australia), clarifying his point of order, stated his
contention to be merely that the United States amendment was on the same
footing as any other amendment reducing the allocation at issue to $2,700,000.
Whether any such amendment would be in order would depend on a decision by

the Board as to whether it was willing to reopen discussion of the substance

of the relevant paragraph.

Mr. HSIAO (China) held thet 4f, as stated by the representative of
Yugoslavia, the Ukrainian propessl wa# oot an amendment, but a new motion,
the Chairman was acting in contravention of the rules of procedure if he
were to put it to the vote forthwith. He stated that the Chairman was not

acting impartially.

Mr. KESSLER (Switzerland) moved that the meeting be adjourned.

The motion was adopted by nineteen votes to onme.

The meeting rose at 1.15 p.m.






